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Request for Information to  

Tender No. (1/eGov/2022) 

General Response for All Raised Questions  

Taking into consideration the requirements outlined in the RFI and this Q&A document, bidders need to respond based on their 
experience in projects of similar size and scope 

 
Q1 Can we assume that total number of employees are not being considered in total number of individuals given and both the numbers are distinct? 

A1 Confirmed, the numbers are distinct. 

Q2 As we know that new tax requires support throughout the system, right from registration to enforcement. Hence there will be substantial changes in 
the system across different modules and functionalities. 
 
Hence, we understand that majority of this requirement is expected to be fulfilled through code intervention only. Please confirm the understanding. 
 
If understanding is not correct, then please provide more details on the requirement for better responding this requirement. 

A2 It is expected that the ITAS software/product would provide the flexibility to configure additional parameters that may be required across different 
modules and functionalities while implementing any new tax in the future. 

Q3 We understand that risk rating and profiling happens once taxpayer is registered and performs different transactions in the system. Hence taxpayer 
profile will have risk related data at later stage once risk profiling is run the system. Please confirm the understanding or provide more details if 
understanding is not correct. 

A3 Historical taxpayer data will be migrated from existing core tax system to ITAS. Bidder is expected to consider the same for taxpayer profiling. 

Q4 Please provide more details on "appeal registration fees Pre-filled online tax appeal form" for better responding to the requirement. 

A4 It is expected that the system must enable the Taxpayer to initiate appeals by filling a predefined Tax appeal form and make a payment against the Appeal 
Registration fees (if and whenever applicable). The input form and the Registration fees should be made as a configurable parameter for future proofing 
the solution. Detailed functional requirements will be provided in the RFP to the shortlisted bidders. 

Q5 Please provide more details on exact requirement of data driven decision making in case of tax exemption for better responding to the requirement. 

A5 It is expected from the Bidder to consider automatic checks per tax type to support tax officer role according the best practices and provide 
recommendations. More details will be provided to the shortlisted bidders as part of the RFP 

Q6 Please elaborate more on "Electronic processes". What all processes are expected? 

A6 It is expected from the bidder to consider leading CRM practices to facilitate taxpayers' faceless interaction with ISTD tax officers. Detailed functional 
requirements will be shared in the RFP with the shortlisted bidders. 

Q7 Please provide more details on exact requirement of data driven decision making in case of taxpayer services (CRM) for better responding to the 
requirement. 

A7 It is expected from the bidder to consider leading CRM practices to facilitate taxpayers' faceless interaction with ISTD tax officers. Detailed functional 
requirements will be shared in the RFP with the shortlisted bidders. 
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Q8 Please provide more details on exact high-level requirement of system-based variance analysis for better responding to the requirement. 

A8 Approximately 1,000+ reports are presently being used. However, 480 reports are currently available through a drop-down list feature that are commonly 
used (daily, weekly, monthly). Therefore, it is expected from the Bidder to assess the current existing reports and recommend according to leading 
practices an appropriate solution for BI implementation. 

Q9 We understand that testing (SIT, UAT) will happen for each of the modules in one go. However, system will go live in one go only for all modules. 
Please confirm the understanding or provide more details for better responding to the requirement. 

A9 Bidder is expected to provide an implementation methodology and timeline (ref. section 4.7) that is best suited to meet the RFI requirements. SIT/UAT may 
be proposed accordingly. 

Q10 We understand that registration data and final leger balance (Either debit or credit) of each registered and active taxpayer in legacy systems should 
be migrated to the ITAS system. However other transactional data (return, payment, assessment) will not be migrated to ITAS system. Please confirm 
the understanding. 

A10 Existing core tax system will be decommissioned once the new ITAS is implemented. Hence, it is expected that entire data from e-services is migrated to 
ITAS. Selected bidder would be expected to understand the current data setup and propose a data migration strategy. 

Q11 We understand that implementation period is 2 years which includes even warranty and 10 years of maintenance. Please confirm the understanding. 

A11 Warranty of 1 year post completion of the agreement is required. Warranty should be outside the implementation period of 2 years and operations & 
maintenance of 10 years. 

Q12 Please provide responses to following points: 
1) We understand that electronic signatures / digital signatures will be issued by MoDEE and ITAS is required to be integrated with the vendor of the 
same. Please confirm the understanding. 
2) If understanding is not correct in point 1, then please provide the detail requirement of electronic signature (Issuing Authority, Certifying Authority, 
Registration Authority, Hosting of PKI - Public Key Infrastructure). 

A12 Bidder needs to consider industry leading practices in Tax administration and refer to the ELECTRONIC TRANSACTIONS LAW N0 (85) OF 2001 of the 
Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan while proposing the solution. 

Q13 We understand that "Locally Developed Software" will include Pre-Existing Solutions / Framework based Solutions, for which the IPR and Source 
Code belongs to Bidder. Such solutions will be customized for MoDEE to meet its requirements. Pls confirm this understanding.  
 
This will enable MoDEE to get quicker implementation as well as rich benefits of other implementations of the framework. 

A13 If it’s a "Locally Developed Software" that is customized to meet a client's requirements, then the source code should be made available to MoDEE/ISTD. 
This is necessary to enable MoDEE/ISTD continue the operations and maintenance of ITAS after the contract with the vendor ends. 

Q14 We understand that help desk support is required during implementation period for the warranty duration which bidder is expected to give once 
application goes live. Please confirm the understanding. If understanding is not correct, then please provide more details. 
 
Please confirm that helpdesk support is required for only internal ISTD officials and not for the taxpayers. Since helpdesk support is internal, support 
is not required for 24X7. Please confirm the understanding. Please provide more details, if understanding is not correct. 

A14 Incorrect understanding.  
 
Bidder is expected to implement helpdesk support/ CRM solution along with other ITAS modules. Bidder is also expected to establish helpdesk support as 
soon as any functionality goes live during the implementation period.   
 



Page 3 of 13 

 

ISTD stakeholders includes tax officers, taxpayers, tax agents and any other personas that may be identified during the requirements gathering stage.  
Service levels for helpdesk support will be detailed out in the RFP. 

Q15 We understand that e-invoicing solution will be developed for Sales Tax only. Please confirm the understanding. Please provide all the taxes if 
understanding is not correct. 

A15 It is expected that the system includes all invoices issued regardless of whether the taxpayers are subject to sales tax or not as the main objective is to 
cover all transactions issued by taxpayers to the tax authority. 

Q16 We understand that E-Invoicing solution should be capable of providing integration with all kind of trader systems of taxpayers. Hence integration is 
required between E-Invoicing solution and Accounting System (Trader System) of the taxpayer who can be supplier (seller). However please provide 
more details on integration requirement between buyers and suppliers. 

A16 The solution provider will undertake to provide a system that can integrate with all available systems and provide all the requirements required for 
integration by providing SDK file that contains all the required requirements.   

Q17 Can we propose JSON format considering the advantages of JSON over XML specially in handling the voluminous transaction as E-Invoicing 
solution requires invoices from across the country? 

A17 Expected to use any format XML for example and in most countries both format XML and JSON file. 

Q18 Please provide more details for following documents as the same may not attract sales tax: 
1) Salary Notes 
2) Payment Instructions 

A18 It is expected the system should consider all transactions, therefore additional commercial data and specific addenda's might be required. The structured 
design would be designed to accept this information and the solution should be able to support it. 

Q19 Please provide the use case for invoice image capturing as we understand that invoices will be transmitted in XML / JSON format to E-Invoicing 
solution. 

A19 The solution should be able to create a graphical representation of the electronic invoice (XML/JSON). For this, the solution should store both the raw 
electronic invoice and be able to parse the data. 

Q20 We understand that e-Declaration system receives return from the taxpayer and e-Declaration system is different than core taxation system. Please 
confirm the understanding or provide more details if understanding is not correct. 

A20 E-Declaration should be part of the core tax system as one of the sections of the tax cycle and Tax Administration services. The e-invoice integration with 
the system is required, given the data captured in the invoice will allow the e-declaration prefilling. The integration is based on the data, therefore it can 
be leverage from the storage of the parsed data.  

Q21 Please provide the high-level integration points with CRM solution. 

A21 As explained in the previous point, the CRM can leverage from invoices data to optimize the customer (taxpayers) management: 
-  Interoperability with internal data sources that allows providing quality and conclusive resolution in the first assistance levels, with less dependence on 
escalation of cases. 
- Analytics that allows to identify in real time trends in inquiries by taxpayers that warn about any problem (e.g., a system failure).  

Q22 Please confirm that ' Technology Owner Certificate' is required for COTS solution only or for all types of solutions as mentioned under section 4.4? 
Please explain purpose for this certificate. Is there any specific format for this certificate? 

A22 The Technology Owner Certificate is required for all types of system proposed by the bidder. The purpose of the Technology Owner Certificate is:  
1. To ensure that bidder is authorized to propose the system. 
2. Confirmation by the Technology owner that the system functionality stated by the bidder is correct. 
There is no specific format for this certificate. 
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Q23 Please elaborate for following 2 types of Software.  
If any proprietary solution is built using open-source technology stack with few commercial libraries, then it will be categorized as OPEN or LDSW? 
Also, RFP has mentioned of the Bespoke (Be spoke development) as Development Approach in section 6.8.1 and 6.8.2. However, this Bespoke 
category is not mentioned in this list in section 4.4. Kindly confirm of all other types apart from COTS category will fall under Bespoke development? 

A23 If any proprietary solution is built using open-source technology stack with few commercial libraries, then it will be categorized as OPEN 
LDSW covers the bespoke development approach as well. 

Q24 1. We understand that maximum 3 companies consortium is allowed to Bid. Please confirm. 
2. "WHEREAS Clause <> of tender document " - Please clarify which clause of the tender document to be referred in this text of the letter. 

A24 1. Yes, maximum of 3 companies consortium is allowed. 
2. Please refer Section/Clause 2.2 of the Prequalification document. 

Q25 1. We understand that bid no. in this statement refers to the Prequalification No.: 1eGov2022. Please confirm. 
2. We understand that (Name of work) in this statement is “Implementation of E-Invoicing & Integrated Tax Administration Solution at the Income & 
Sales Tax Department". Please confirm. 

A25 1. The bid no. in this statement refers to the Prequalification No.: 1eGov2022.  
2. The "Name of work" in this statement is “Implementation of E-Invoicing & Integrated Tax Administration Solution at the Income & Sales Tax Department". 

Q26 1. The component / activity list is not explicitly defined in the tender document. Please clarify which all sections to be referred to identify the 
component / activity list. 
  
2.  The given roles / responsibility table in this section should be filled separate for each solution or jointly for both E-Invoicing & integrated tax 
administration system? please confirm. 

A26 1. Please refer section 4 and section 5 for scope of work.  
2. The given roles / responsibility table in this section should be filled separate for each solution, i.e.  E-Invoicing & Integrated Tax Administration System. 

Q27 We request to remove requirements of separate numbers of Employees for implementation, support and management as it is not feasible to bifurcate 
associates of the company's having large number of employees. 

A27 The bidder can provide the indicative number of below employees: 
1. ICT Implementation/Development resources. 
2. ICT Support and Maintenance resources. 

Q28 1. We understand that Bidder’s local presence in Jordan is not the mandatory requirement. Please confirm. 
2. If local presence is required then please confirm if it is allowed to have any one of the members of consortium or prime bidder or sub-contractor 
having local presence in Jordan. 

A28 1. The local presence in Jordan is not a mandatory requirement for the Prequalification process. The bidder to provide these details, only if locally present.  
2. The local presence in Jordan is not mandatory requirement for the Prequalification process. 

Q29 Please clarify for the need of References: section in the document format as it already having "Client personnel with contact details" field to capture 
client reference details. 

A29 In the "Client personnel with contact details", the bidder to provide the authorized client signatory of the contract. In References, the bidder may provide 
any other client references who were involved in project implementation.   

Q30 1.  We understand that in this section bidder needs to provide brief approach and methodology for the implementation and support and more details 
of the same will be provided in the RFP stage. Please confirm. 
2. What is expectation for subsection " Customization/Development Approach" as there is already a subsection "Development Approach (COTS/ Be 
scope development)" 
3. Is there any preference for the implementation methodology - Agile / Waterfall? 
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4. Hybrid model (Onsite- Offshore or Near Shore-Offshore model) is allowed? in which some percentage of work will be carried out by team at Onsite/ 
Near Shore and rest of the work will be carried out by team at Offshore location. 

A30 1. The bidder needs to provide brief approach and methodology for the implementation and support for the Prequalification process.  
2. In the "Development Approach" to the bidder to specify if the proposed solution is COTS or Bespoke system. In the "Customization/Development 
Approach", the bidder to specific the "out of the box Vs customization required" functionalities of the proposed system.  
3. Bidder to propose their preferred implementation methodology to deliver the complete scope within the mandated timelines.  
4. Bidder is allowed to propose the hybrid model. 

Q31 The scope of work given in the tender document is very high-level requirements. Detailed requirements are needed in order to estimate and derive the 
resources required for the implementation. Hence, we request to remove the resources plan requirement from this section. 

A31 Bidder is expected to provide a tentative resource plan. Detailed requirements will be provided in the RFP to the shortlisted bidders. 

Q32 What is expected from Bidder to adjust the project plan here as there is no indicative project plan given in the tender document. We understand that 
Bidder can propose plan considering best possible optimizations considering 2 year of overall timespan of project implementation and rollout. Kindly 
confirm. 

A32 Confirmed. Bidder is expected to implement ITAS as well as e-invoicing in 2 years and based on experience, propose any adjustments that might be required 
to achieve it. 

Q33 Please confirm scope of helpdesk. We assume that MoDEE / ISTD is already having helpdesk setup. Hence bidder needs to provide only helpdesk 
personnel and not the infrastructure and corresponding software for the same. 

A33 Bidder is expected to provide a CRM solution (Ref. 4.2.8,) that is integrated with ITAS. Bidder is also expected to define the business processes for CRM 
during requirements gathering stage and provide helpdesk personnel to address technical queries. 

Q34 Please clarify what is purpose of "Updating component schema" column in this table.   

A34 Bidder should highlight the upgrade in terms of new version and/or releases that would be included/ excluded. 

Q35 Our understanding is that MoDEE own private cloud at local data center. Please confirm the understanding. If understanding is not correct, then 
please provide more details on cloud infrastructure owned by MoDEE. 

A35 Yes, MoDEE has a Government Private Cloud (GPC) but the details of the same will shared in the RFP with the shortlisted bidders.  

Q36 Is cloud infrastructure at MoDEE supports Kubernetes and Docker based application deployment? 

A36 Yes. Details will be provided to the shortlisted bidders during RFP stage. 

Q37 Is all external systems supports API (REST Webservices) integrations? 

A37 Not all integrations with external system are API based and some integrations are at DB level as well. 

Q38 What will be approximate size of data which need to be migrated? 

A38 Details will be provided to the shortlisted bidders during RFP stage. 

Q39 We understand that this detail requires only for COTS Products. Please confirm the understanding. 

A39 Bidder is expected to share the website or product documentation or marketing fliers for the proposed solution. 

Q40 Our understanding is that list only requires for the components which has commercial license. Hence Open-source components details are not 
required to provide. However open-source components will be included in detailed technology stack. Please confirm. 

A40 Bidder is expected to follow the guidelines in the RFI and provide details of all the solution components accordingly. 
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Q41 Details like Version, Roadmap, Releases etc. only applicable for COTS product and not applicable for Locally Developed Software please confirm. 

A41 Bidder is expected to provide similar details for LDSW as well. 

Q42 Please, include all details of existing infrastructure so that bidder can make the assumptions to leverage the applicable component. It may not be 
feasible for team to study infrastructure setup at site in current unprecedented COVID-19 situation. Hence, we request to include all details such as 
Make/Model of server, virtualization, CPU Core, Memory, Storage type (SAS/SSD, SAN/NAS etc.), storage capacity, existing data size, technology 
stack, network components, security components, detailed configuration, End of support date, warranty/ATS details, system software and its 
licenses, support/ATS of system software etc. 

A42 Bidder is expected to provide hardware sizing/ infrastructure requirements for its proposed solution. Details around existing infrastructure would be 
provided in the RFP with the shortlisted bidders. 

Q43 Please, provide the application wise (ITAS and E-Invoicing Solution) expected concurrent logged-in users for Backoffice (Intranet) and taxpayer 
(Internet) portal. 

A43 Key data points around number of taxpayers have been provided in the RFI. Bidder is expected to make suitable assumptions based on industry leading 
practices. 

Q44 Please, provide the list of all internal and external integrations. 

A44 There are 11 branch offices and 14 external agency systems that are connected to ISTD HQ. 

Q45 Please, provide the details of present database technology and database wise number of tables and data size. Same for documents (PDF, word, 
images etc.). 

A45 Details to be provided in RFP 

Q46 Please, provide more details on security requirement. It is difficult to identify the security solution building blocks based on information available in 
this section. 

A46 Bidder needs to consider industry leading practices in Tax administration and provide recommendations in their response. More details will be provided as 
part of the RFP. 

Q47 How many DC to be considered? Primary DC and DR DC or Primary DC - Near DC - DR DC? (Near DC can be used for data dump site to protect data 
only). 

A47 Bidder needs to consider industry leading practices in tax administration and provide recommendations in their response. More details will be provided as 
part of the RFP. 

Q48 Please, provide the list of mobile app. This will help bidder to find optimal solution, cost and efforts. 

A48 The bidder should consider mobile apps for both Taxpayer and Tax officer functions.  More details will be provided to the shortlisted bidders as part of the 
RFP. 

Q49 Is the solution to be deployed on public cloud or On-premise virtualized environment? 

A49 Details & decisions for hosting to be determined in the RFP for each component. 

Q50 We are assuming that solution provider (bidder) is required to develop/customize the software solution and it will be API based. Taxpayer will 
integrate their system with API to send invoice document. Solution provider (Bidder) is not required to consider the supply of devices such as 
Electronic Tax Register (ETR), Point of Sale (PoS) etc. Please, confirm this assumption. 

A50 Confirmed 

Q51 We understand that bidder to provide hardware sizing as part of RFI response. Hence, we request to provide the estimated number of invoices per 
month and expected highest number of invoices per day from across the country.  
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If possible, please provide monthly and daily invoices with the breakup of B2B, B2C and B2G. 

A51 This depends on the number of invoices expected by ISDT, which the taxpayers issue daily and monthly, taking into consideration the increase in the number 
of these invoices after integration with the E-invoice system, for example in previous case, the number of first invoices was estimated each month in the 
range of 15 million invoices and after a short period of integration this number was increased to 80 million per month, the solution flexibility is expected to 
ensure the future increase. 
Based on ISDT provided range and average number of invoices. 

Q52 Please provide list of taxes (tax-types) currently administered by ISTD and requires to be a part of new ITAS. 

A52 Currently, the ISTD governs, administers, and manages different types of taxes as follow:  
GST/SST/CIT/WHT/PIT/Advance Payment/ NCT/ Stamp Duty/ Customs Duty 
Notwithstanding, the system is still expected to have the capability to administer additional taxes, if decided to be introduced by the Government of 
Jordan in the future. 

Q53 We understand that ISTD governs Customs Duty. Will processes concerning levy and implementation of customs duty, including customs 
procedures, be part of the envisaged ITAS solution? Or will there be a separate solution for customs procedures that ITAS shall integrate with for 
certain processes and data exchange? 

A53 Customs is a separate system that is integrated with existing core tax system for different purposes. It is not to be considered as part of ITAS. However, 
integration of ITAS with Customs will be required. 

Q54 Is the functionality about budgeting and planning only relevant to the tax revenue planning or does it also include the expenditure budgeting for ISTD 
administration? 

A54 Functionality would be budgeting and planning tax revenue not ISTD administrative costs or revenue. However, in the event where the ISTD is envisaged to 
provide any services specific to tax (e.g., registration fees or printing tax certificates), these should also need to be forecasted. 

Q55 Is the envisaged ITAS expected to directly integrate with the banking system to disburse payments or is there an intermediary mechanism between 
the two systems? If direct integration with banking systems is required, can the bidder assume that the partner banks will be willing to adopt to the 
bidder's integration schema / file format / API or will the bidder be expected to develop separate integrations with each partner bank? 

A55 It is expected that ITAS would be required to integrate with one common system/platform (efwateercom) that would facilitate interfacing with other 
banks. Accordingly, ITAS would need to follow the integration schema of the common system/ platform. 

Q56 Taxpayer behavioral patterns and data analysis are best done with ample historical information. We recommend all the existing data available within 
the current system be translated and transformed to the new BI Analytics system design so as to start using the analytics from the inception of the 
new ITAS instead of only after using the ITAS after a considerable period. 
If this is the vision, please include requirements and terms about such data translation in the RFP. 

A56 The bidder should migrate all the historical data from current systems (including eServices, documents repository, excel sheets, word documents, pdf files, 
soft copies, hard copies or any other forms of relevant data) as a part of data migration process during implementation. Bidder needs to consider industry 
leading practices in Tax administration and provide recommendations in their response. More details will be provided to the shortlisted bidder as part of 
the RFP. 

Q57 Is the system expected to support multi-lingual reading capability or is multi-lingual input and data storage is also expected? 

A57 The system shall have multilingual support. Services should be in English and Arabic. There should be capability to capture and store the data in English and 
Arabic. The system should allow the user to switch languages during a session without logging them out or having to restart the session.  

Q58 Kindly state the following: 
1) Is the bidder supposed to use existing deployed hardware on a shared basis or it’s a totally new procurement for envisaged ITAS Application. 
2) Current IT Infra Setup BoM @ DC and DR for understanding the IT landscape. 
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3)Current state of Infra setup with Hardware & Software its Make, Model and OEM support validity. the existing cloud is Private, Public or a Hybrid 
(Private+Public) deployment. 
4) Kindly elaborate on cloud expectations from Availability within the region or Globally, DC and DR within the region or extended to other region. 
Kindly clarify for respective points. 

A58 Details & decisions for hosting to be determined in the RFP for each component. 

Q59 Kindly clarify or provide the details for following. 
1) What is the expected threshold limit for CPU and Memory utilization to be proposed during peak load. 
2) It is assumed that the end user Infrastructure is not in bidder scope. 
3) It is also assumed that the Network connectivity between any source and destination i.e., DC, DR or End User is not in bidder scope. 
4) The Network connectivity is assumed to be procured by department and made available to bidder. 

A59 1) Bidder is expected to make certain assumptions on peak load based on data points shared in the RFI. Accordingly suggest the CPU and memory utilization 
that can be supported by its proposed solution. 
2) Correct 
3) Correct 
4) Correct 

Q60 Kindly state what percentage ratio of Non- Production environment compute has been envisaged by the ISTD / MoDEE with respect to Production 
compute at Data Center. 

A60 Bidder must provide development, testing, & production environments, and define the percentages.  

Q61 Kindly share more details if the expectation of any IT Infra / cloud related Training which has been envisaged by the ISTD / MoDEE. 

A61 Operation & Procedure manual will be provided if the decision is private cloud on the RFP. 

Q62 Please share the following information about data migration 
1 Amount of data to be migrated, structured as well as unstructured separately 
2. Number of tables and average number of attributes in each table to be migrated 

A62 To be provided in RFP  

Q63 If ISTD / MoDEE follow any statutory Security IT Policy from the Law of the Land to be followed, we request you to kindly share the same for the 
compliance perspective or kindly elaborate more on any specific guidelines. 

A63 Develop a detailed backup policy and related procedures encompassing handling the proposed solution and security controls. i.e., backup policy and 
procedures, auditing policy, etc., and in compliance with ISO 27001 standard. Bidder needs to build security controls in the proposed service/application 
against Level 1 and Level 2 controls of OWAS Application Security Verification Standard V4.0 (2019). Bidder needs to consider the National Information 
Assurance and Cyber Security Strategy (NIACSS) in 2012 and National Cyber Security Strategy 2018-2023 and provide recommendations in their response. 
More details will be provided as part of the RFP. 

Q64 Please provide the list of IT security components envisaged by the ISTD / MoDEE to be part of the security deployment setup. 

A64 More details will be provided as part of the RFP. 

Q65 Kindly state below for achieving smooth operations: 
1) The expected RPO and RTO to be maintained. 
2) Has the ISTD / MoDEE envisaged any DR drill frequency to be executed i.e., Bi-Yearly or Yearly. 
3) If Yes, then what type of DR Drill has been envisaged i.e., whether it is on dummy data or with actual data at DR site. This is important aspect of DR 
drill, if the ISTD / MoDEE is envisaging to perform Production operation from DR site. Kindly give detailed scenario. 
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A65 Bidder needs to consider industry leading practices in Tax administration and provide recommendations in their response. More details will be provided as 
part of the RFP. 

Q66 Is it necessary to have a local office or at least work with a local partner based in Jordan? 

A66 Bidder needs to submit their proposal as per Section 3.4 of the Prequalification document. For the Prequalification process, it is not necessary to have a 
local office or work with a local partner based in Jordan. 

Q67 Can we have a Word version of the document? 

A67 Bidders to refer to the PDF version of the Prequalification document shared with them, for preparing their response. 

Q68 Do you want print outs of the financial reports? 

A68 Bidder to physically submit Prequalification Proposal including all supporting documents as mandated; one original hardcopy along with two copies. In 
addition, a PDF copy (in USB or CD) of the Prequalification proposal to be done along with the physical submission. 

Q69 Regarding the total number of taxpayers 1,444,199 the Individuals and Employees are huge for the size of the Jordan market. 
Can you please clarify these numbers are correct? Do we need to add 10% per annum increase on this number for final license users? 

A69 1.4 m users are registered taxpayers, half of them are active only. 

Q70 How many years of transaction data do you want to migrate? 

A70 ISTD have data since 1950’s, but the volume is not too big. 

Q71 Do you have a preference for cloud-based or on-premise system? 

A71 Will be defined in the RFP  

Q72 What is the number of interfaces we can expect with other ministries and partners? 

A72 Presently, there are 11 branch offices and 14 externally agencies interfacing with ISTD HQ. In addition to the existing ones, 10 new interfaces should be 
considered. 

Q73 Can you provide an idea of the current system architecture? 

A73 Details will be shared with the shortlisted bidder during the RFP stage.  

Q74 Does the E-invoicing project and ITAS project need to run in parallel? Will ISTD team be able to support the requirement gathering and subsequent 
phases for both projects at the same time in terms of staff / infrastructure and other obligations? 
If they are not to run in parallel, does the ISTD department want ITAS to be implemented first or e-invoicing project first? 

A74 ISTD expects that both ITAS and e-invoicing are implemented in 2 years from the date of vendor selection, parallel, and with priority to e-invoicing  

Q75 What is the scoring criteria for RFI for shortlisting? 

A75 Bidder to comply with the Section 3.4 Prequalification Evaluation & related sections as stated in the Prequalification document for shortlisting. 

Q76 Are you using any integration platform? Would you require a new integration platform with ITAS or continue using the existing one? 

A76 Yes, standard web services are being currently used. Bidder is expected to propose a new integration platform. 

Q77 Can a project under implementation be considered for the references? 

A77 Bidder needs to provide experience of Go Live implementations with requisite supporting documents. 
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Q78 This section mentions digital procedures. Can you please give us some more information around it? 

A78 Digital procedures refer to standard guidelines/ framework to be established by the vendor for integrating with external agencies (existing as well as new). 

Q79 As per the current PQQ, ITAS implementation period is proposed for 2 years. Considering the COVID situation and the need for remote working, 
which sometimes lead to more time on requirement gathering. Can we propose an alternative implementation plan with a phase wise go live over a 
period of 3-4 years? 

A79 Mandate is to go live with ITAS and E-invoicing in 2 years. 

Q80 What is the current available HW infrastructure? Is there an expectation to reuse some of the existing infrastructure? 

A80 Details of existing hardware/ IT infra will be provided in the RFP to the shortlisted bidders. 

Q81 We are planning to submit our bid with a consortium partner and have already started our efforts in that direction. However, we will need more time to 
negotiate and agree. Hence can we please have a 3 week extension to submit our response? 

A81 The new submission deadline will be on Feb 9, 2022 before 12:00 pm (Amman local time). 

Q82 We understand that MoDEE has already released the procurement earlier for e-invoicing in 2019 and 2020. What was the reason it was cancelled, and 
will the procurement definitely go ahead this time? 

A82 MoDEE reserves the right not to disclose the details regarding the previous tendering process. MoDEE intends to onboard a qualified bidder to implement 
ITAS and E-Invoicing in coming months. 

Q83 Is there any indication on the budget spend for total project of ITAS and e-invoicing? 

A83 Confidential. 

Q84 Does the ITAS and E-invoicing solution need to be hosted on the same platform? 

A84 Requirement is to integrate the E-invoicing solution with the core tax system and meet the SLAs that will be detailed out in the RFP. 

Q85 What are the timelines for RFP issuance and by when you plan to start the project? 

A85 The process should start as soon as possible. It is scheduled for Q1 2022, tentatively. 

Q86 What is the expected functionality for each of the mobile applications? 

A86 Details of mobile requirements will be provided in the RFP to the shortlisted bidders. 

Q87 It states that electronic transmission of data must be through an electronic data exchange format, such as XML. Q: Will the ISTD be flexible with the 
types of e-invoicing formats or restrict to a single format? 

A87 XML is just an example and should be flexible with other formulas.   

Q88 It is stated that the solution should be flexible enough to consider a gradual implementation for all types of transactions (B2G, B2B, B2C). Q: Can we 
confirm that the ISTD is open for a phase e-invoicing deployment based on transaction types? If so, is there an indicative timeline on when they'd like 
to complete this phased deployment? 

A88 Gradual implementation per transaction type and taxpayer size is expected. 

Q89 Data validation is covered, and the proposed solution should make validations for data. Q: Are there any preferences to leverage global standards or 
even make extensions of existing standards? i.e., ISO or UN/CEFACT, etc. (similar to what was undertaken in KSA). 
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A89 Data validation should consider synchronous (syntax validation based on the invoice format and fields formats) and asynchronous (based on business rules 
define for specific fields either based on catalogues or calculation).  
Global standards for the synchronous validation depend on the format selected by ISTD. 

Q90 Does the tax authority have a view/opinion on the type of e-invoicing model they'd like to deploy, or are they flexible? i.e., Clearance, Post-Audit, 
Interoperability (4-corner, 5-corner) model 

A90 The form of the invoice must be flexible in order to cover all activities in the country and there should be a basic form covering the main data. 

Q91 Could the design involve different models based on the transaction types, e.g., B2B vs B2C 

A91 The basic data used for tax transactions identified in accordance with the tax law will not differ but may include other data based on the different nature 
of the activity. 
The transaction will affect the fields requirements (I.E B2B/B2C) but the overall structure (format and integration portal should be the same or 
integrated). 

Q92 Is there an indicative timeline to when Jordan would want to go-live with the first phase of this roll-out? 

A92 Overall timeline for both ITAS and E-invoicing is 2 years. Bidder is expected to highlight the milestones/phases in the proposed implementation timeline. 

Q93 If access points (service providers) are permissible under the proposed e-invoicing model design, would the tax authority be accountable and 
responsible for the certification of vendors to provide e-invoicing services? 

A93 'Yes, there should be previous registration process of acceptable certify vendors. It is expected that the solution should evaluate those vendors within the 
issuance of the invoices either by the vendor data capturing in the structure of the invoice or by the connection (API parameter validating the vendor id). 

Q94 Would the tax authority consider delegated clearance mechanisms, where accredited service providers could fulfil the role of clearing E-invoicing 
documents on behalf of the tax regime? 

A94 One of the options for consideration. 

Q95 Would the data requirements for the e-invoices and/or e-notes (credit/debit notes) be based on the existing tax regulations or would they need to be 
re-examined as part of this implementation? 

A95 It is based on the current tax law and also it should be more flexible to cover any law changes. 
Specific format/structured for e-invoices TBC in further stage. 

Q96 If digital signatures are to be leveraged, would the tax authority take the role of the certificate authority (CA) or can that be appointed to a third party? 

A96 IT is expected to be appointed to a third party. 

Q97 Would the tax authority be open to leveraging public key infrastructure (PKI) for the purposes of managing, distributing, using, storing and revoking 
digital certificates and managing public-key encryption in e-invoicing? 

A97 Yes, If there is any need to leveraging the PKI for e invoicing. 
 

Q98 What are the expectations regarding data migration? Will the old ITAS system be decommissioned? 

A98 Yes, old ITAS will be decommissioned. 

Q99 Do you have any preferences or expectations regarding the overall timeline, e.g., if you want both initiatives to run in parallel, any set go live dates, 
etc.? 

A99 Please follow the pre-qualification document's guidelines for the overall timeline, two years maximum.  

Q100 What are the steps and timeline prescribed to complete evaluation by ISTD, deadline for notices to bidders of acceptance or rejection? 
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A100 Bidders will be duly informed of the acceptance or rejections upon completion of prequalification process. 

Q101 In case bidder provides e-Invoicing solution that is ITAS independent (can be integrated with any ITAS), is it acceptable if bidder provides proposal 
on e-Invoicing solution alone? 

A101 Bidder to submit their proposal for both ITAS and E-Invoicing system either as a single bidder or as Consortium with multiple participants. 

Q102 Estimated duration of the project is clear (2 years), but Is there a time estimate in which ISTD is looking to start this project (for example Q3-2022, Q1-
2023)? 

A102 The process should start as soon as possible. It is scheduled for 2022. 

Q103 Are the requirements stated in the Pre-qualification document already covered by the laws and by-laws, or legislation rules will be written later? If 
later, will it be before tender announcement or after the selection of most suitable bidder? 

A103 The requirements given in the Pre-qualification document are not an exhaustive account of law and by-laws requirements. Bidder to apprise themselves of 
the existing local laws and conditions and should propose the system in conformity with the provisions of the laws. Bidder may feel free to propose any 
legislative changes, as may be deemed necessary based on his learning from similar implementations.  
System should be flexible enough to accommodate any future changes to the Law. 

Q104 The Key Data Points states a figure of 43,129 sales taxpayers combined individual and companies. We assume that ISTD’s desire is for the scope of 
E-Invoicing solution to monitor this population only? If not, what is expected population of taxpayers to be using E-Invoicing solution? 

A104 The solution should be able to support the different taxpayers and transactions and future increases on the number of issuances. Please provide the 
solution sizing based on the provided taxpayer’s estimation taking into consideration a flexible solution that can increase the sizing in the future. 

Q105 B2C transactions are mentioned as subject of the scope under e-Invoicing solution under gradual implementation. Is there a phase approach plan to 
expand the mandate to use e-Invoicing solution by certain category? If yes, is it by the business size, type or other criteria? 

A105 The process is planned for all type of transactions including the B2C.  
The solution should be implemented gradually, the starting point with B2B transactions and then create the functionalities for B2C. Additionally, there 
might be a gradual adoption by taxpayers, however this should not prevent the advancement in the other transaction’s implementations. 

Q106 The process of data migration will affect the implementation of e-Invoicing solution. Will MoDEE consider separating two systems in two separate 
procurement processes, given its dependencies? 

A106 No. Bidder is expected to adhere to the pre-qualification document guidelines. 

Q107 Who are EDI service providers? If these are different entities, are there any currently registered in Jordan and what are qualifications required for EDI 
service providers? 

A107 The qualification should be developed based on the APIS requirement, law and overall technical requirements for the representation and issuance of 
electronic invoices. 

Q108 Is there a criteria under which MoDEE will grant an extension for submissions? (i.e., if no bidder offers combined ITAS and E-Invoicing solution in 
one package). 

A108 Bidder to submit their proposal for both ITAS and E-Invoicing system either as a single bidder or as Consortium with multiple participants. The proposed 
solution for ITAS and E-Invoicing need not to be one package.  
 
The new submission deadline will be on Feb 9, 2022 before 12:00 pm (Amman local time). 

Q109 Approximately how many external Agency interface will be required 

A109 Presently, there are 11 branch offices and 14 externally agencies interfacing with ISTD. In addition to the existing ones, 10 new interfaces should be 
considered. 
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Q110 We re-opened our offices in the 1st week of January 2022 following the holidays after only which we were able to review the prequalification 
document -hence we kindly request for a closing date extension of at least 21 days, to allow us time to adequately respond. 

A110 The new submission deadline will be on Feb 9, 2022 before 12:00 pm (Amman local time). 

Q111 In what Form are you expecting to see the answers to all of questions in 4.3?  

A111 Bidder to provide their compliance to the ITAS scope of work defined in Section 4 in Form 8. 

Q112 There are many tables in section 4 and 5 that imply that they should be completed however section 4 and 5 are not listed as being part of the 
proposal documents which are Forms 1 to Forms 9.  Where should these tables be included and answered? 

A112 Bidder to provide their compliance to the ITAS scope of work defined in Section 4 in Form 8. 

Q113 Would the agency consider extending the due date to give vendors more time to respond?  We make this request based upon the following: 
a. Many of the questions require a response similar to an RFP. For example, 4.3 - Provide a high-level implementation plan for the proposed solution, 
describing the implementation methodology, stages, timelines, and resources. 
b. Given that answers to our questions may not be received until Jan 19th and the due date is Jan 26th, not including printing and shipping time; this 
does not leave a lot of time to modify our response. 

A113 The new submission deadline will be on Feb 9, 2022 before 12:00 pm (Amman local time). 

Q114 Is it possible if the January 26 deadline is extended for another 2-3 weeks to allow us to develop and submit a proposal that can meet MoDEE 
expectations? 

A114 The new submission deadline will be on Feb 9, 2022 before 12:00 pm (Amman local time). 

Q115 Is it possible to have an exception and allow soft submission? 

A115 Yes. It is acceptable to send a soft copy to (egov_tenders@modee.gov.jo) in PDF format and should be stamped and searchable. 

Q116 Some vendors have forwarded the invitation of the Prequalification Document to their trusted partners. Is it acceptable?  

A116 The Prequalification Document has been shared with limited list of vendors/Original Equipment Manufacturers only, bearing in mind that these are 
essentially the owners of the relevant products and may or may not be the implementers themselves. There are no restrictions in the Prequalification 
Document for vendors/Original Equipment Manufacturers to invite their authorized and trusted partners (should have Technology Owner Certificate) to the 
tender. These authorized and trusted partners could respond individually, via consortium with the vendors / Original Equipment Manufacturers or via 
consortium with a third party as prescribed in the Prequalification document. MoDEE will evaluate a response, and it will go through the process and be 
evaluated according to the criteria that has been stated in the Prequalification Document. 
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